
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, June 20, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 1 
 

1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements  
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held June 6, 2022 
• Executive Session held June 6, 2022 

 

8. Employee Recognition 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 

9. ANX-C2200161:  Dustin Gillespie has petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville the 1.04 
acre tract known as TMP 090 099, Located at 544 Gold Bullion Drive W, with a County Zoning of 
RPC (Residential Planned Community) to City Zoning RPC (Residential Planned Community).  
Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on June 13, 2022, and City Council on June 20, 2022.  
City Council for a decision on July 18, 2022. 
 

10. ANX-C2200162: Ryan and Jessica Disharoon have petitioned to annex into the city limits of 
Dawsonville the 2.36 acre tract known as TMP 090 107 and 090 104, Located at 446 Gold Bullion 
Drive W, with a County Zoning of RPC (Residential Planned Community) to City Zoning RPC 
(Residential Planned Community).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on June 13, 2022, 
and City Council on June 20, 2022.  City Council for a decision on July 18, 2022. 
 

11. ANX-C2200170: B&K Turner Family, LLP has petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville 
the 35.31 acre tract known as TMP 083 025, Located at Land Lot 584, 4th District, Section 1, with a 
County Zoning of RA (Residential Agricultural/Residential Exurban) to City Zoning AP (Annexed 
Property District).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on June 13, 2022, and City Council 
on June 20, 2022.  City Council for a decision on July 18, 2022. 
 

BUSINESS 
 

12. Request for Waiver of Reconnection Fees 
13. Resolution No. R2022-06: Adopt the FY 2022-2023 Budget 
14. Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding Local Option Sales Tax  

 

WORK SESSION 
 

15. Proposed Lift Station Request – Starlight Homes 
16. Dawsonville Moonshine Distillery Lease – Request for Early Termination 
17. Doc Brown Farm and Distillers – Presentation to Request Lease Space at City Hall 

 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

18. Bob Bolz, City Manager 
19. Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator 

 

     EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NEEDED        

     ADJOURNMENT   

The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, July 18, 2022 
 
 
 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should contact the Clerk at 
Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/20/2022     
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held June 6, 2022 
• Executive Session held June 6, 2022 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #       7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/20/2022     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 

 
• REGULAR MEETING HELD JUNE 6, 2022 
• EXECUTIVE SESSION HELD JUNE 6, 2022 

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, June 6, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Pro-Tem Walden called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 
 

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember Mark French, Councilmember Caleb Phillips, 
Councilmember William Illg, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City Manager Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly 
Banister, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard, Utilities Operation Manager Jacob Barr, Planning 
Director David Picklesimer and Finance Administrator Robin Gazaway. 

 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and pledge were led by Councilmember Illg.   
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Pro-Tem Walden announced the next Food Truck night will be July 1, 
2022, the Farmer’s Market is open every Saturday through October starting at 8:00 am and the 
Primary Runoff is scheduled for June 21, 2022 with advanced voting from June 13 – 17, 2022. 

 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to amend the agenda by removing item #12 made by W. 
Illg; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

Motion to approve the agenda as amended made by M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.    

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  None 
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a,b,c) made by 
W. Illg; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held May 16, 2022 

b. Approve Annual Chamber of Commerce Agreement 
c. Approve Electric Vehicle Charging Services Agreement  

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

8. PROPOSED FY 2022-2023 BUDGET:  Motion to open the public hearing made by W. Illg; second 
by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  Mayor Pro-Tem Walden conducted the public 
hearing.  No one spoke in favor of or opposition to the request.  Finance Administrator Gazaway 
explained there will be an increase to the health insurance by eight (8) percent.  Motion to close the 
public hearing made by M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

BUSINESS 
 

9. ANX-C2200143:  Stephen Caldwell has petitioned to annex 3.00 acres of TMP 068 053, Located at 
389 Cleve Wright Rd, with a County Zoning of RA (Residential Agricultural/Residential Exurban) to 
City Zoning RA (Restricted Agricultural District).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on 
May 9, 2022, and City Council on May 16, 2022.  City Council for a decision on June 6, 2022. 
 

Motion to approve ANX-C2200143 as presented made by W. Illg; second by M. French.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor. (Exhibit “A”) 
 

10. RESOLUTION #R2022-05:GEORGIA STATE PATROL POST #37:  Motion to approve Resolution 
#R2022-05 as presented made by M. French; second by C. Phillips; second by M. French.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor. (Exhibit “B”) 
 

11. FIFTY FIFTH ANNUAL MOUNTAIN MOONSHINE FESTIVAL:  Kare for Kids Director Tiffany Buchan 
provided a brief overview of the festival.   
 

Motion to approve the permit application and road closures as requested made by M. French; second 
by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  Mayor Pro-Tem Walden requested that if any changes 
were made to the event to make the City Council aware of it; Ms. Buchan agreed and said she would 
contact City Manager Bolz.  
 

12. DAWSONVILLE MOONSHINE DISTILLERY: REQUEST TO TERMINATE LEASE:  Removed from 
agenda.  
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, June 6, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 2 of 2 
 

     EXECUTIVE SESSION:  
 

 At 5:18 p.m. a motion to close regular session and go into executive session for personnel was made 
by W. Illg; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

 

 At 5:46 p.m. a motion to close the executive session was made by W. Illg; second by C. Phillips.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.  

 

Motion to resume regular session was made by M. French; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  

        

          ADJOURNMENT: 
 

At 5:49 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by c. Phillips; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried 
unanimously. 

 
 

 Approved this 20th day of June 2022. 
 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
   ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 
         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  

 
         
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
   
 
Attest: _________________________        
           Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 















Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                                  EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION_____________  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/20/2022     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO RECOGNIZE AND PRESENT THE FOLLOWING:  
• MAY 2022 EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH  

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Bob Bolz, City Manager________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    8     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:                                  ANX C2200161         _________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  June 20, 2022       
 
PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Annexation application requires a public hearing before approval.   
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
1. Property is located within post 4 Mark French council district. 

 
2. The subject property adjoins City zoned PUD district to the south, County RPC district to the east, 

City PUD district to the west and City PUD district to the north. 
 

3. Applicant is requesting to annex 1.04 acres. 
 

4. Existing County RPC zoning.  
 

5. Proposed City RPC zoning. 
 

6. Etowah water service is current provider.  
 

7. Onsite septic system is currently in use. 
 

8. Roadway infrastructure is private maintained.  
 

9. City Council approved open annexation on 12/20/21 thru 4/30/22 for unincorporated islands 
properties.  

 
10. Dawson County Board of Commissioners heard the request on 5/19/22. The board had no objection 

to the request and did not take a vote. Approval by 30-day default will be on 6/4/22. 
 

11. Planning Commission approved the request on 6/13/22 without conditions. 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: 
 ___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 

 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 
REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer_        ____________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 9 
 



































                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:                                  ANX C2200162         _________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  June 20, 2022       
 
PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Annexation application requires a public hearing before approval.   
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
1. Property is in post 4 Mark French Council district. 

 
2. The subject property adjoins City zoned PUD district to the south, City PUD district to the east, City 

PUD district to the west and City PUD district to the north. 
 

3. Applicant is requesting to annex 2.36 acres. 
 

4. Existing County RPC zoning. 
 

5. Proposed City RPC zoning. 
 

6. Etowah water service is provider.  
 

7. Onsite septic system is currently in use. 
 

8. Roadway infrastructure is private maintained.  
 

9. City Council approved open annexation on 12/20/21 thru 4/30/22 for unincorporated islands 
properties.  

 
10. Dawson County Board of Commissioners heard the request on 5/19/22. The board had no objection 

to the request and did not take a vote. Approval by 30-day default will be on 6/4/22. 
 

11. Planning Commission approved the request on 6/13/22 without conditions. 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: 
 ___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 

 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 
REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer_        ____________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 10 
 



































                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:                                  ANX C2200170         _________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  June 20, 2022       
 
PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Annexation application requires a public hearing before approval.   
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
1. Property is located within Caleb Phillips Post 1 Council district. 

 
2. The subject property adjoins City zoned R3 district to the south, City zoned R3 district to the east, 

County zoned RA district to the west and City zoned INST district to the north. 
 

3. Applicant is requesting to annex 35.31 acres. 
 

4. Existing County RA zoning. 
 

5. Proposed City AP zoning. 
 

6. Rezoning petition cannot be filed for 12 months from the effective date.  
 

7. The AP zoning designation is a temporary designation up to a period of 16 months after the effective 
date and shall automatically convert from AP zoning district to R1 zoning district. 

 
8. Mayor and City Council can extend the AP zoning district up to 18 months.   

 
9. Water and Sewer service is proposed to be provided by Etowah Water and Sewer.  

 
10. Dawson County Board of Commissioners heard the request on 6/2/22. The board had no objection to 

the request and did not take a vote. Approval by 30-day default will be on 6/16/22. 
 

11. Planning Commission approved the request without conditions on 6/13/22. 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: 
 ___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 

 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 
REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer_        ____________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 11 
 



































                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT: __REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF RECONNECTION FEES 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:         06/20/2022         _    
  
 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:  
 
TO CONSIDER REQUEST FROM ERIC JOHNSTON TO WAIVE $300 RECONNECTION FEE 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES 
 

• UTILITY SERVICE ORIGINALLY ESTABLISHED ON 09/04/2019 
 

• SERVICE DISCONNECTED FOR NON-PAYMENT IN JANUARY 2021 ($50 RECONNECTION FEE); 
SECOND DISCONNECTION DUE TO NON-PAYMENT IN JANUARY 2022 ($100 RECONNECTION 
FEE); THIRD DISCONNECTION DUE TO NON-PAYMENT IN APRIL 2022 ($200 RECONNECTION 
FEE); FOURTH DISCONNECTION DUE TO NON-PAYMENT IN JUNE 2022 ($300 RECONNECTION 
FEE) 
 

• RESIDENT WAS ADVISED TO CONTACT TRACY IF ADDITIONAL TIME OR PAYMENT 
ARRANGEMENTS WERE NEEDED TO AVOID DISCONNECTION; NO CONTACT WAS MADE BY 
RESIDENT 
 

• RESIDENT RECEIVED NOTICE OF PAST DUE AMOUNT AND RISK OF DISCONNECTION WITH 
THE MAY BILLING AND ALSO RECEIVED A TEXT MESSAGE APPROXIMATELY ONE WEEK 
PRIOR TO DISCONNECTION; NO CONTACT WAS MADE BY RESIDENT AND NO PAYMENT 
RECEIVED 
 

• WATER DISCONNECTED ON 06/02/2022; CUSTOMER PAID PAST DUE ONLY AND WATER WAS 
RECONNECTED.  SHOULD HAVE PAID THE $300 RECONNECTION FEE TO HAVE WATER 
RECONECTED – AT THIS TIME CUSTOMER REQUESTED A WAIVER OF THE FEE. 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
APPROVE OR DENY 
 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDS DENYING 
 
 
 

 
     DEPARTMENT:  ______UTILITY DEPARTMENT___________________________________ 

 
     REQUESTED BY: ______Tracy Smith and Jacob Barr________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #___12________ 
 



From: eric johnston >  
Sent: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 10:27 AM 
To: Tracy Smith <water@dawsonville-ga.gov> 
Subject: Re: AGENDA 
 
Hi Tracy -  
 
This is a formal request to appear before the City Council to request to have my $300 reconnect fee 
waived.  
 
Thank you,  
Eric Johnston 
 

mailto:water@dawsonville-ga.gov


Sec. 14-23. - Connection fees for water and sewer service. 

(a) Water service. Effective December 1, 2005, each consumer subscribing to use the water service of 

the city shall pay a connection fee associated therewith. This connection fee is not a deposit, but 

is the connection fee to reimburse the city for its cost and expense in providing a service line, 

meter and labor. The meter shall remain the property of the city. By way of clarification, in the 

event an owner or user has a single water line serving multiple renters, family members, 

businesses, etc., each distinct line shall constitute a tap-on fee for purposes of this section in 

accordance with the applicable provisions of sections 14-37 and 14-38. The connection fee shall 

be according as set forth in section 2-11 O of this Code. 

(b) Sewer service. Effective December 1, 2005, in addition to the water service fees above, each party 

shall also pay the amount set out in section 2-11 O of this Code for connection to sewer service. 

This connection fee is not a deposit, but is the connection fee to reimburse the city for its cost 

and expense in providing a service line up to the user's property line as well as the costs 

associated with any labor. The portion of the sewer line up to the user's property line shall 

remain the property of the city. By way of clarification, in the event an owner or user has a single 

sewer line serving multiple renters, family members, businesses, etc., each distinct line shall 

constitute a tap-on fee for purposes of this section in accordance with the applicable provisions 

of sections 14-37 and 14-38. The connection fee for sewer service shall be as set out in section 2-

11 O of this Code. 

(c) Reconnect fees. Effective upon the passage of this section, with respect to both water and sewer 

service provided by the city, in the event that after service has been disconnected a consumer 

requests service to be reconnected, the consumer shall pay all outstanding bills in full including 

the reconnection fees set forth in chaJ;!ter 2, section 2-110, late fees prescribed in chaJ;!ter 14, 

section 14-25(a)(1 ), and applicable interest charges pursuant to chaJ;!ter 14, section 14-25(a)(3) in 

order to be eligible for the reconnection of water and/or sewer services. 

(d) Multiple violations. For the purpose of calculating the appropriate reconnection fee, violations 

whether by non-payment or otherwise within a 24-month period of the request for reconnection 

are considered. 

(Ord. of 5-6-1997, § 5; Ord. of 10-3-2005(1 ), § 2; Ord of 9-10-2018, § 1) 

bbanister
Highlight



14-23(b). Sewer service connection fees (times the number of connections desired): 

¾ inch, (only be available for residential purposes appropriate to the 5,250.00 

anticipated usage) 

1 inch 7,250.00 

1½ inches 10,000.00 

2inches 18,000.00 

3inches 30,500.00 

4inches 50,500.00 

6inches 75,500.00 

8inches 105,500.00 

14-23(c). First time reconnect within a 24-month period, in addition to any 50.00 

outstanding bills, late fees, and/or interest charges 

14-23(c). Second time reconnect within a 24-month period, in addition to any 100.00 

outstanding bills, late fees, and/or interest charges 

14-23(c). Third time reconnect within a 24-month period, in addition to any 200.00 

outstanding bills, late fees, and/or interest charges 

14-23(c). Fourth and subsequent violation within a 24-month period, in 200.00 

addition to any outstanding bills, late fees, and/or interest charges, per 

violation,+ $100.00 per each additional violation above third violation 

14-23.1 (a). Residential security deposit for applicant owning/renting the 150.00 

property to be serviced 

bbanister
Highlight

bbanister
Highlight

bbanister
Highlight

bbanister
Highlight

bbanister
Highlight

bbanister
Highlight

bbanister
Highlight

bbanister
Highlight



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   RESOLUTION NO. R2022-06: ADOPT THE FY 2022-2023 BUDGET 

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/20/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO REQUEST ADOPTION THE PROPOSED FY 2022-2023 BUDGET BY RESOLUTION 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES:     

• MAY 16, 2022 – COUNCIL & PUBLIC REVIEW OF PROPOSED FY23 BUDGET 
• JUNE 6, 2022 – PUBLIC HEARING FOR PROPOSED FY23 BUDGET  

 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
   
    APPROVE, AMEND, DENY OR TABLE 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator__________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   13     
 

 

 



RESOLUTION No. R2022-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA,  
ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING  

JULY 1, 2022 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2023 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Dawsonville, Georgia has prepared its annual budget for fiscal year July 
1, 2022 through June 30, 2023; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council received a proposed budget on May 16, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with O.C.G.A §36-81-5(d) the budget was made available for public 
review at city hall and on the city’s official website; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with O.C.G.A §36-81-5(e) notice was published setting forth the 
availability of the budget for public review and in accordance with O.C.G.A §36-81-5(g) the 
notice included the public hearing advertisement on the proposed budget set for June 6, 2022; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing on the proposed budget was held on June 6, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with O.C.G.A §36-81-6(a) the City Council has provided notice of a 
public meeting for June 20, 2021 to adopt the budget.  A copy of the budget is attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A”.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Dawsonville, 
Georgia that the Annual Budget for fiscal year July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby approved, effective and adopted on this 20th day of June 2022. 

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

 
By:       _____ 

             Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
 

      _____ 
Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post #1 
 

 
      _____ 
William Illg, Councilmember Post #2 

 
 

      _____ 
John Walden, Councilmember Post #3 
 

              
_____________________________________                
Mark French, Councilmember Post #4 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 



FUND ACCOUNT NAME FUNCTION REVENUE EXPENSES

100 GENERAL FUND 1100 $134,400.00

1300 $22,860.00

1400 $15,000.00

1500 $1,769,862.00

1565 $163,694.00

3900 $1,536.00

4200 $584,363.00

6200 $65,528.00

7400 $440,008.00

7540/7550 $117,000.00

$3,314,251.00 $3,314,251.00

230 ARPA 4200 $3,700,400.00 $3,700,400.00

275 HOTEL-MOTEL TAX $6,000.00 $6,000.00

285 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY $29,400.00 $29,400.00

320/327 SPLOST VI & VII $1,643,000.00 $1,643,000.00

505 ENTERPRISE 4300 $1,147,792.00 $1,264,892.00

4400 $909,891.00 $792,791.00

$2,057,683.00 $2,057,683.00

530 CAPITAL OUTLAY 4300 $10,271,000.00 $7,587,500.00

4400 $200,000.00 $2,883,500.00

$10,471,000.00 $10,471,000.00

540 GARBAGE 4310 $230,200.00 $230,200.00

790 CEMETERY 4950 $119,000.00 $119,000.00

FY 2022-23 TOTAL EXPENDITURES $21,570,934.00

SEWER TAPS 

WATER TAPS

FY 2022-23 TOTAL REVENUE $21,570,934.00

SEWER

WATER

ELECTIONS

ADMINISTRATION

ANIMAL CONTROL

ROADS

PARKS

SOLID WASTE

CEMETERY

PLANNING & ZONING

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

CITYHALL BUILDING

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE

BUDGET FY 2022-23

DESCRIPTION

COUNCIL

MAYOR

Page 1
Exhibit "A"



REVENUE
Account # Account Description 2022-23 Recmnd 2021-22 Budget 2021-22 Actual

100-0000-311100 ELECTRIC FRANCHISE FEES                 165,000.00 160,000.00 169,401.51  
100-0000-311315 MOTOR VEHICLE TITLE AD VALOREM TAX      66,000.00 58,000.00 87,074.83
100-0000-311730 GAS FRANCHISE FEES                      13,000.00 13,000.00 13,692.06
100-0000-311750 TV CABLE FRANCHISE FEES                 10,000.00 0.00 12,106.41
100-0000-311760 TELEPHONE FRANCHISE FEES                20,000.00 20,000.00 19,373.24
100-0000-311790 GARBAGE FRANCHISE FEES                  7,500.00 10,000.00 7,446.00
100-0000-311795 BROADBAND FRANCHISE FEE                 775.00 1,200.00 534.99
100-0000-313100 LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX                  1,670,000.00 1,250,000.00 1,228,820.49
100-0000-314200 ALCOHOL EXCISE TAX                      115,000.00 115,000.00 93,737.29
100-0000-314500 EXCISE TAX ON ENERGY                    50.00 50.00 44.59
100-0000-316100 OCCUPATION TAX                          34,000.00 34,000.00 32,045.73
100-0000-316200 INSURANCE PREMIUM TAX                   223,000.00 210,000.00 223,455.10
100-0000-316300 FINANCIAL INSTITUTION TAX               0.00 7,500.00 5,540.46
100-0000-321100 ALCOHOL LICENSE                         28,000.00 27,000.00 27,840.00
100-0000-321150 CATERING EVENT PERMIT                   0.00 200.00 0.00
100-0000-322210 ZONING & LAND USE FEES                  15,000.00 9,000.00 14,263.48
100-0000-322215 ANNEXATION FEE 500.00 0.00 0.00
100-0000-322230 SIGN PERMIT                             1,300.00 1,500.00 930.00
100-0000-322240 VARIANCE APPLICATION FEE                2,000.00 1,800.00 2,400.00
100-0000-322250 DEMOLITION PERMIT 300.00 100.00 300.00
100-0000-322990 PARADE/PUBLIC ASSEMBLY FEE              300.00 800.00 350.00
100-0000-322995 PARADE/PUBLIC ASSEMBLY CLEANUP  0.00 0.00 0.00
100-0000-323100 BUILDING PERMIT                         60,000.00 60,000.00 60,098.88
100-0000-323111 CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY FEE            4,200.00 4,200.00 4,080.00
100-0000-323130 PLUMBING PERMIT FEES                    0.00 4,400.00 3,010.00
100-0000-323140 ELECTRIC PERMIT FEES                    0.00 4,700.00 3,320.00
100-0000-323160 HVAC PERMIT FEES                        0.00 4,000.00 3,080.00
100-0000-323900 OTHER - GRADING FEES                    3,000.00 5,000.00 3,507.20
100-0000-323901 OTHER - PLAN REVIEW FEES                18,000.00 12,000.00 23,341.64
100-0000-334150 SAFETY GRANT 6,000.00 3,000.00 6,000.00
100-0000-334200 HEALTH GRANT                            0.00 0.00 0.00
100-0000-334250 CARES ACT GRANT 0.00 0.00 0.00
100-0000-334310 STATE GRANT CAPITAL-LMIG DIRECT         0.00 32,000.00 36,206.91
100-0000-341400 MISC REVENUE                            3,000.00 3,000.00 9,893.27
100-0000-341450 ROOM RENTAL REVENUE 5,000.00 0.00 4,100.00
100-0000-343001 ENGINEERING FEE 0.00 10,000.00 0.00
100-0000-346100           ANIMAL CONTROL AND SHELTER FEES         0.00 2,625.00 0.00
100-0000-349300 BAD CHECK FEE                           0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00
100-0000-351170 MUNICIPAL COURT FEES 3,000.00 500.00 3,915.20
100-0000-361000 INTEREST INCOME                         1,300.00 2,200.00 2,270.21
100-0000-381000 RENTAL INCOME - DMC                     60,000.00 42,000.00 67,046.07
100-1400-341910 ELECTION QUALIFYING FEE                 0.00 0.00 968.00
100-1500-311340 INTANGIBLES TAX                         40,000.00 55,000.00 37,621.62
100-1500-311601 REAL ESTATE TRANSFER TAX                15,000.00 15,000.00 11,083.16
100-0000-740000 TRANSFER IN FROM RESERVES 724,026.00 22,357.00 0.00

GENERAL FUND Revenue Totals:  3,314,251.00 2,201,132.00 2,218,898.34

EXPENDITURES
Account # Account Description 2022-23 Recmnd 2021-22 Budget 2021-22 Actual

 DEPARTMENT: COUNCIL   
100-1100-511000 COUNCIL: SALARIES                                35,000.00 34,000.00 26,000.00
100-1100-512100 COUNCIL: GROUP INSURANCE                         89,000.00 56,075.00 58,420.37
100-1100-512200 COUNCIL: TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 3,000.00 2,600.00 1,728.89
100-1100-523200 COUNCIL: COMMUNICATIONS - CELL PHONE   2,900.00 4,080.00 3,547.77
100-1100-523500 COUNCIL: TRAVEL                                  1,000.00 1,000.00 864.73
100-1100-523700 COUNCIL: EDUCATION & TRAINING                    3,000.00 2,035.00 4,703.30
100-1100-531100 COUNCIL: SUPPLIES                    500.00 0.00 133.45
 DEPARTMENT: MAYOR      134,400.00
100-1300-511000 MAYOR: SALARIES                                17,000.00 17,000.00 12,800.00
100-1300-512100 MAYOR: GROUP INSURANCE                         60.00 60.00 33.00
100-1300-512200 MAYOR: TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 1,400.00 1,300.00 979.19
100-1300-523200 MAYOR: COMMUNICATIONS - CELL PHONE 1,000.00 1,020.00 1,693.11
100-1300-523500 MAYOR: TRAVEL                                  1,200.00 1,200.00 253.93
100-1300-523700 MAYOR: EDUCATION & TRAINING                    2,000.00 2,035.00 1,035.00
100-1300-531100 MAYOR: SUPPLIES 200.00 0.00 59.00
 DEPARTMENT: ELECTIONS    22,860.00
100-1400-521203 ELECTIONS: PROFESSIONAL OTHER                 15,000.00 8,000.00 12,587.22
100-1400-523300 ELECTIONS: ADVERTISING                             0.00 0.00 0.00
100-1400-523400 ELECTIONS: PRINTING AND BINDING                    0.00 0.00 0.00

GENERAL FUND - 100                            

GENERAL FUND - 100                            

BUDGET FY 2022-23

Page 2
Exhibit "A"



100-1400-531100 ELECTIONS: SUPPLIES                                0.00 0.00 0.00
 DEPARTMENT: ADMINISTRATION    15,000.00
100-1500-511000 ADMINISTRATION: SALARIES                                383,016.00 360,597.00 311,137.69
100-1500-512100 ADMINISTRATION: GROUP INSURANCE           164,000.00 153,948.00 132,871.32
100-1500-512200 ADMINISTRATION: TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA     32,000.00 31,251.00 25,344.21
100-1500-512400 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS                25,000.00 19,800.00 22,256.33
100-1500-512700 WORKERS COMP                            4,300.00 4,313.00 1,058.00
100-1500-521200 PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      70,000.00 102,886.00 40,783.69
100-1500-521201 PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING                 19,000.00 19,000.00 8,338.68
100-1500-521203 PROFESSIONAL OTHER                      57,000.00 15,035.00 43,580.15
100-1500-521300 TECHNICAL SERVICES (IT)                 19,245.00 19,245.00 9,759.95
100-1500-521315 TECHNICAL SERVICES-PAYROLL ACH          3,600.00 3,200.00 2,737.02
100-1500-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   4,078.00 4,078.00 2,423.91
100-1500-522320 RENTAL EQUIPMENT       3,010.00 3,010.00 1,746.26
100-1500-523000 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES                32,000.00 32,000.00 18,100.00
100-1500-523100 INSURANCE OTHER THAN EMPL               15,000.00 23,100.00 26,441.50
100-1500-523200 COMMUNICATIONS                          13,000.00 11,173.00 11,516.45
100-1500-523300 ADVERTISING                             2,500.00 1,721.00 1,794.15
100-1500-523400 PRINTING AND BINDING                    1,116.00 1,116.00 60.00
100-1500-523500 TRAVEL                                  4,000.00 4,000.00 2,317.51
100-1500-523600 DUES & FEES                             12,112.00 12,112.00 8,397.35
100-1500-523700 EDUCATION & TRAINING                    4,435.00 4,435.00 1,948.00
100-1500-523910 UNIFORMS 1,400.00 300.00 0.00
100-1500-531100 SUPPLIES                                45,000.00 25,851.00 23,069.34
100-1500-531270 ENERGY GASOLINE/DIESEL                  1,550.00 1,512.00 1,288.40
100-1500-531300 FOOD                                    2,500.00 2,500.00 1,677.33
100-1500-531600 SMALL EQUIPMENT 5,000.00 5,015.00 0.00
100-1500-541000 CAPITAL OUTLAY 296,000.00 0.00 99,108.42
100-1500-581000 CONTINGENCY 0.00 0.00 0.00
100-1500-999999 PMTS TO OTHER - DAWSON 550,000.00 93,618.00 65,871.75
 DEPARTMENT: CITY HALL BLDG            1,769,862.00
100-1565-521300 TECHNICAL SERVICES                      5,387.00 5,387.00 4,312.45
100-1565-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   43,000.00 43,000.00 29,992.44
100-1565-522201 R & M - GRHOF 5,000.00 2,000.00 0.00
100-1565-522202 R & M - DISTILLERY 5,000.00 2,000.00 0.00
100-1565-531100 SUPPLIES                                25,000.00 25,007.00 9,056.69
100-1565-531220 ENERGY NATURAL GAS                      9,000.00 9,052.00 7,942.45
100-1565-531230 ENERGY ELECTRICITY                      51,307.00 51,307.00 42,544.10
100-1565-540000 CAPITAL OUTLAY 20,000.00 0.00 0.00
 DEPARTMENT: ANIMAL CONTROL              163,694.00
100-3900-523600 DUES & FEES                             500.00 500.00 100.00
100-3900-531100 SUPPLIES                                1,036.00 1,036.00 13.20
 DEPARTMENT: ROADS                       1,536.00
100-4200-511000 SALARIES                                259,177.00 244,158.00 208,644.42
100-4200-512100 GROUP INSURANCE                         94,000.00 75,000.00 74,977.78
100-4200-512200 TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 21,000.00 21,000.00 16,114.66
100-4200-512400 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS                5,000.00 3,400.00 6,470.81
100-4200-512700 WORKERS COMP                            27,000.00 27,000.00 12,259.17
100-4200-521200 PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00
100-4200-521202 PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING                4,500.00 4,500.00 9,126.84
100-4200-521300 TECHNICAL SERVICES                      7,000.00 7,000.00 7,347.07
100-4200-522110           GARBAGE SERVICES                        2,000.00 1,200.00 1,966.84
100-4200-522140 STREET SWEEPING/GROUNDSUP               14,300.00 14,300.00 7,200.00
100-4200-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   50,000.00 35,481.00 52,770.49
100-4200-523200 COMMUNICATIONS                          5,240.00 5,240.00 3,759.92
100-4200-523400 PRINTING AND BINDING                    100.00 100.00 0.00
100-4200-523500 TRAVEL                                  2,000.00 2,000.00 1,158.00
100-4200-523600 DUES & FEES                             1,513.00 1,513.00 1,908.49
100-4200-523700 EDUCATION & TRAINING                    1,500.00 1,500.00 1,149.02
100-4200-523910 UNIFORM SERVICE                         3,000.00 2,843.00 1,351.24
100-4200-531100 SUPPLIES                                22,000.00 20,956.00 29,998.32
100-4200-531230 ENERGY ELECTRICITY                      47,033.00 47,033.00 38,053.60
100-4200-531240 ENERGY BOTTLED GAS                      1,000.00 2,000.00 358.81
100-4200-531270 ENERGY GASOLINE/DIESEL                  10,000.00 7,357.00 9,445.22
100-4200-531300 FOOD                                    0.00 0.00 539.08
100-4200-541400 INFRASTRUCTURE-GDOT LMIG                1,000.00 0.00 18,505.20
 DEPARTMENT: PARKS                       584,363.00
100-6200-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   20,000.00 20,000.00 56,599.22
100-6200-531100 SUPPLIES                                25,000.00 16,037.00 41,380.14
100-6200-531230 ENERGY ELECTRICITY                      20,528.00 20,528.00 14,502.96
100-6200-542100 CAPITAL OUTLAY - PARKS 0.00 0.00 37,802.62
 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING & ZONING           65,528.00
100-7400-511000 SALARIES                                211,300.00 204,000.00 177,094.03
100-7400-512100 GROUP INSURANCE                         79,000.00 39,000.00 62,599.36
100-7400-512200 TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 16,700.00 17,900.00 13,329.59

Page 3
Exhibit "A"



100-7400-512400 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS                7,508.00 3,200.00 7,205.34
100-7400-512700           WORKERS COMP                            800.00 376.00 2,403.18
100-7400-521200 PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      43,000.00 45,951.00 15,127.55
100-7400-521202 PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING                11,000.00 11,000.00 4,172.89
100-7400-521203 PROFESSIONAL OTHER                      18,000.00 19,735.00 13,383.40
100-7400-521300 TECHNICAL SERVICES                      11,000.00 9,000.00 10,061.91
100-7400-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   2,000.00 1,182.00 1,073.67
100-7400-522320 RENTAL EQUIPMENT 4,400.00 4,400.00 3,475.65
100-7400-523200 COMMUNICATIONS                          5,000.00 5,120.00 3,126.05
100-7400-523300 ADVERTISING                             1,400.00 1,490.00 1,254.00
100-7400-523400 PRINTING AND BINDING                    500.00 500.00 0.00
100-7400-523500 TRAVEL                                  4,000.00 3,000.00 6,206.40
100-7400-523600 DUES & FEES                             2,500.00 2,500.00 1,834.67
100-7400-523700 EDUCATION & TRAINING                    4,000.00 4,395.00 4,077.00
100-7400-523800 LICENSES 400.00 400.00 0.00
100-7400-523910 UNIFORMS 1,000.00 1,214.00 213.99
100-7400-531100 SUPPLIES                                13,500.00 10,689.00 6,703.13
100-7400-321270 ENERGY-GASOLINE / DIESEL 3,000.00 1,648.00 2,089.05
100-7400-541400 CAPITAL - PROPERTY (VEHICLE) 0.00 0.00 0.00
 DEPARTMENT: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT               440,008.00
100-7540-572000 PMTS TO OTHER AGENCY (Chamber of Commerce           12,000.00 12,000.00 10,000.00
100-7550-531000 PMTS TO OTHER AGENCY (DDA)             105,000.00 25,000.00 0.00

GENERAL FUND Expenditure Totals:  3,314,251.00 2,234,356.00 2,081,248.48

GENERAL FUND Revenue Totals:  3,314,251.00
GENERAL FUND Expenditure Totals:  3,314,251.00

REVENUE ARPA -230
Account # Account Description 2022-23 Recmnd 2021-22 Budget 2021-22 Actual

230-0000-332100 AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN 3,700,000.00 0.00 606,087.00
230-0000-361000 INTEREST 400.00 0.00 277.72

ARPA FUND 230 Revenue Totals 3,700,400.00 0.00 606,087.00

EXPENDITURES                                                              ARPA - 230
Account # Account Description 2022-23 Recmnd 2021-22 Budget 2021-22 Actual

230-4200-541000 PUBLIC WORKS/UTILITIES 3,700,400.00 0.00 32,294.43

ARPA FUND 230 Expenditure Totals 3,700,400.00 0.00 32,294.43

ARPA FUND 230 Revenue Totals 3,700,400.00
ARPA FUND 230 Expenditure Totals 3,700,400.00

REVENUE                                                            HOTEL/MOTEL FUND - 275
Account # Account Description 2022-23 Recmnd 2021-22 Budget 2021-22 Actual

275-0000-314100 HOTEL/MOTEL TAX                         6,000.00 5,502.00 7,386.26
HOTEL/MOTEL FUND 275 Revenue Totals 6,000.00 5,502.00 7,386.26

EXPENDITURES                                                           HOTEL/MOTEL FUND - 275
Account # Account Description 2022-23 Recmnd 2021-22 Budget 2021-22 Actual

275-7540-572000 PMTS TO OTHER AGENCY (Chamber of Commerce 6,000.00 7,280.00 6,807.99
HOTEL/MOTEL FUND 275 Expenditure Totals 6,000.00 7,280.00 6,807.99

HOTEL/MOTEL FUND 275 Revenue Totals 6,000.00
HOTEL/MOTEL FUND 275 Expenditure Totals 6,000.00

Page 4
Exhibit "A"



REVENUE
Account # Account Description 2022-23 Recmnd 2021-22 Budget 2021-22 Actual

285-7550-000000 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  (DDA)        4,400.00 4,400.00 0.00
285-7500-740000 TRANSFER IN FROM RESERVES 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00

DDA FUND 285 Revenue Totals 29,400.00 29,400.00 0.00

EXPENDITURES
Account # Account Description 2022-23 Recmnd 2021-22 Budget 2021-22 Actual

285-7500-521200           PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00
285-7500-521201           PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING                 1,200.00 1,200.00 0.00
285-7500-521203           PROFESSIONAL OTHER                      0.00 0.00 0.00
285-7500-523300           ADVERTISING                             0.00 0.00 0.00
285-7500-523700           EDUCATION & TRAINING                    1,200.00 1,200.00 0.00
285-7500-531000           FIREWORKS PURCHASE                      0.00 0.00 0.00
285-7500-531100           SUPPLIES                                0.00 0.00 0.00
285-7500-540000           GRANT DISBURSEMENTS                     25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00
285-7550-531000 OTHER EXPENDITURES FROM RESERVES 0.00 0.00 0.00

DDA FUND 285 Expenditure Totals 29,400.00 29,400.00 0.00

DDA FUND 285 Revenue Totals 29,400.00
DDA FUND 285 Expenditure Totals 29,400.00

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND (DDA) - 285

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND (DDA) - 285

Page 5
Exhibit "A"



REVENUE
Account # Account Description 2022-23 Recmnd 2021-22 Budget 2021-22 Actual

320-0000-313200 SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 0.00 0.00 0.00
320-0000-361000 INTEREST INCOME                         100.00 300.00 362.69
320-0000-361000 TRANSFER IN FROM RESERVES 42,900.00 555,700.00 0.00

 SPLOST VI FUND 320 Revenue Totals 43,000.00 556,000.00 362.69

EXPENDITURES
Account # Account Description 2022-23 Recmnd 2021-22 Budget 2021-22 Actual

320-1000-541300           CAPITAL OUTLAY - CITY HALL ACQUISITION  0.00 11,902.00 0.00
320-4200-541400           CAPITAL OUTLAY - ROADS AND SIDEWALKS    0.00 504,386.00 515,385.63
320-4200-542000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMNT-R 34,000.00 0.00 6,325.00
320-4300-541400           CAPITAL OUTLAY - SEWER PROJECTS         0.00 0.00 0.00
320-4300-542000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMNT-S 0.00 0.00 0.00
320-4400-541400           CAPITAL OUTLAY - WATER PROJECTS         0.00 0.00 0.00
320-4400-542000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMNT-W 0.00 0.00 0.00
320-6000-541000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - FARMERS MARKET         9,000.00 62,000.00 7,500.00
320-6200-541200           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PARKS AND RECREATION   0.00 0.00 0.00

 SPLOST VI FUND 320 Expenditure Totals 43,000.00 578,288.00 529,210.63

 SPLOST VI FUND 320 Revenue Totals 43,000.00
 SPLOST VI FUND 320 Expenditure Totals 43,000.00

REVENUE
Account # Account Description 2022-23 Recmnd 2021-22 Budget 2021-22 Actual

327-0000-340000 SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 1,599,900.00 0.00 0.00
327-0000-361000 INTEREST INCOME                         100.00 0.00 100.00
327-0000-361000 TRANSFER IN FROM RESERVES 0.00 0.00 0.00

 SPLOST VII FUND 327 Revenue Totals 1,600,000.00 0.00 100.00

EXPENDITURES
Account # Account Description 2022-23 Recmnd 2021-22 Budget 2021-22 Actual

327-1000-541300           CAPITAL OUTLAY - CITY HALL ACQUISITION  789,000.00 0.00 64.59
327-4200-541400           CAPITAL OUTLAY - ROADS AND SIDEWALKS    0.00 0.00 0.00
327-4200-542000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMNT-R 0.00 0.00 0.00
327-4300-541400           CAPITAL OUTLAY - SEWER PROJECTS 338,500.00 0.00 0.00
327-4300-542000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMNT-S 0.00 0.00 0.00
327-4400-541400           CAPITAL OUTLAY - WATER PROJECTS         338,500.00 0.00 0.00
327-4400-542000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMNT-W 34,000.00 0.00 0.00
327-6000-541000           CAPITAL OUTLAY - FARMERS MARKET         0.00 0.00 0.00
327-6200-541200           CAPITAL OUTLAY - PARKS AND RECREATION   100,000.00 0.00 0.00

 SPLOST VII FUND 327 Expenditure Totals 1,600,000.00 0.00 64.59

 SPLOST VII FUND 327 Revenue Totals 1,600,000.00
 SPLOST VII FUND 327 Expenditure Totals 1,600,000.00

SPLOST VI FUND - 320

SPLOST VI FUND - 320

SPLOST VII FUND - 327                           

SPLOST VII FUND - 327                           

Page 6
Exhibit "A"



REVENUE
Account # Account Description 2022-23 Recmnd 2021-22 Budget 2021-22 Actual

505-0000-341400        MISC REV/COPIES/PRINTING                100,000.00 3,000.00 115,714.23
505-0000-344210        WATER CHARGES                           800,000.00 710,000.00 727,150.80
505-0000-344255        SEWERAGE CHARGES                        900,000.00 810,000.00 857,570.59
505-0000-349000        ADMINISTRATIVE FEE                      5,000.00 6,000.00 4,170.00
505-0000-349001        PENALTIES WATER & SEWER                 18,000.00 17,000.00 16,865.54
505-0000-349002        RECONNECT FEE                           2,000.00 6,000.00 1,450.00
505-0000-349300        BAD CHECK FEE                           1,500.00 700.00 1,610.00
505-0000-351400        FINES                                   0.00 500.00 0.00
505-0000-361000        INTEREST INCOME                         2,400.00 3,400.00 1,981.01
505-0000-381001        RENTAL INCOME HOUSE                     9,000.00 9,000.00 7,500.00
505-0000-383000 REIMBURSEMENT FOR DAMAGED PROPERTY 0.00 0.00 0.00
505-0000-611000 OTHER FINANCING USES (RESERVES) 219,783.00 321,225.00 0.00

ENTERPRISE FUND Revenue Totals: 2,057,683.00 1,886,825.00 1,734,012.17

EXPENDITURES
Account # Account Description 2022-23 Recmnd 2021-22 Budget 2021-22 Actual

DEPARTMENT: SEWER                       
505-4300-511000 SALARIES                                177,836.00 173,701.00 142,748.25
505-4300-512100 GROUP INSURANCE                         82,000.00 62,000.00 60,288.15
505-4300-512200 TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 15,500.00 13,889.00 10,715.38
505-4300-512400 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS                12,000.00 11,000.00 14,847.20
505-4300-512700 WORKERS COMP                            10,000.00 9,667.00 3,912.00
505-4300-521200 PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      3,000.00 3,496.00 1,114.39
505-4300-521201 PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING                 16,000.00 12,000.00 13,338.66
505-4300-521202 PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING                100,000.00 51,789.00 106,548.76
505-4300-521203 PROFESSIONAL OTHER                      10,000.00 15,156.00 1,248.00
505-4300-521300 TECHNICAL SERVICES                      15,000.00 14,160.00 12,777.79
505-4300-521315 TECHNICAL SERVICES: ENVIR MGMT          50,000.00 46,393.00 47,243.83
505-4300-522110 GARBAGE SERVICES                        7,500.00 7,500.00 6,250.80
505-4300-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   56,000.00 55,837.00 49,247.16
505-4300-523100 INSURANCE OTHER THAN EMPL               0.00 12,500.00 13,220.75
505-4300-523200 COMMUNICATIONS                          7,000.00 6,349.00 7,197.67
505-4300-523215 POSTAGE / MAIL BILLS                    2,900.00 2,873.00 2,398.98
505-4300-523300 ADVERTISING                             350.00 367.00 212.92
505-4300-523400 PRINTING AND BINDING                    1,700.00 1,681.00 977.50
505-4300-523500 TRAVEL                                  1,000.00 1,000.00 364.00
505-4300-523600 DUES & FEES                             4,000.00 4,000.00 4,560.44
505-4300-523700 EDUCATION & TRAINING                    2,000.00 2,000.00 222.50
505-4300-523800 LICENSES                                100.00 100.00 0.00
505-4300-523910 UNIFORMS                       2,500.00 1,500.00 800.18
505-4300-531100 SUPPLIES                                35,000.00 30,772.00 43,226.59
505-4300-531230 ENERGY ELECTRICITY                      135,000.00 134,674.00 98,100.07
505-4300-531240 ENERGY BOTTLED GAS                      1,300.00 1,300.00 358.81
505-4300-531270 ENERGY GASOLINE/DIESEL                  7,000.00 5,115.00 4,610.24
505-4300-531300 FOOD                                    1,000.00 1,000.00 539.09
505-4300-561000 DEPRECIATION                            428,000.00 428,000.00 336,106.90
505-4300-572000 PMTS TO DAWSON 31,206.00 31,206.00 21,957.23
505-4300-582104 INTEREST BOND 2014                      50,000.00 50,000.00 38,534.40
 DEPARTMENT: WATER                       1,264,892.00
505-4400-511000 SALARIES                                177,836.00 173,701.00 142,748.25
505-4400-512100 GROUP INSURANCE                         82,000.00 62,000.00 60,288.16
505-4400-512200 TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 15,500.00 13,889.00 10,715.40
505-4400-512400 RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS                12,000.00 11,000.00 14,846.99
505-4400-512700 WORKERS COMP                            10,200.00 10,167.00 4,411.76
505-4400-521200 PROFESSIONAL LEGAL                      3,000.00 5,596.00 5,262.09
505-4400-521201 PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING                 16,000.00 12,000.00 18,338.66
505-4400-521202 PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING                35,000.00 11,427.00 29,241.68
505-4400-521203 PROFESSIONAL OTHER                      10,000.00 10,600.00 7,432.50
505-4400-521300 TECHNICAL SERVICES                      12,000.00 15,206.00 10,123.48
505-4400-522110           GARBAGE SERVICES                        1,700.00 1,000.00 1,966.80
505-4400-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   32,000.00 28,552.00 23,653.91
505-4400-522320 RENTAL EQUIPMENT              1,000.00 1,752.00 1,104.12
505-4400-523100 INSURANCE OTHER THAN EMPLOYEE (GIRMA) 0.00 13,000.00 13,220.75
505-4400-523200 COMMUNICATIONS                          9,000.00 8,358.00 7,435.29
505-4400-523215 POSTAGE / MAIL BILLS                    2,900.00 2,873.00 2,398.98
505-4400-523300 ADVERTISING                             350.00 667.00 262.92
505-4400-523400 PRINTING AND BINDING                    1,700.00 1,581.00 977.50
505-4400-523500 TRAVEL                                  1,000.00 1,000.00 140.00
505-4400-523600 DUES & FEES                             12,000.00 12,000.00 9,372.40
505-4400-523700 EDUCATION & TRAINING                    4,000.00 4,000.00 4,652.50
505-4400-523800 LICENSES                                500.00 500.00 0.00

ENTERPRISE FUND - 505                            

ENTERPRISE FUND - 505                           

Page 7
Exhibit "A"



505-4400-523910 UNIFORMS                     2,500.00 1,500.00 800.19
505-4400-531100 SUPPLIES                                60,000.00 46,023.00 61,514.64
505-4400-531115 SUPPLIES: CHEMICALS             45,000.00 39,994.00 32,573.83
505-4400-531230 ENERGY ELECTRICITY                      22,000.00 19,642.00 18,860.31
505-4400-531240 ENERGY BOTTLED GAS                      950.00 950.00 358.81
505-4400-531270 ENERGY GASOLINE/DIESEL                  7,000.00 5,115.00 4,610.22
505-4400-531300 FOOD                                    1,000.00 1,000.00 539.09
505-4400-531510 WATER PURCHASED FROM EWSA               0.00 0.00 0.00
505-4400-561000 DEPRECIATION                            146,000.00 146,000.00 138,593.26
505-4400-572000 PMTS TO DAWSON 31,205.00 31,205.00 21,957.24
505-4400-582104 INTEREST BOND 2014                      37,450.00 37,450.00 29,209.84

GRAND TOTAL of EXPENDITURES: 2,057,683.00 1,920,773.00 1,721,280.21

ENTERPRISE FUND Revenue Totals: 2,057,683.00
GRAND TOTAL of EXPENDITURES: 2,057,683.00

SEWER 1,264,892.00
WATER 792,791.00

REVENUE                                               ENTERPRISE PROJECTS FUND - 530
Account # Account Description 2022-23 Recmnd 2021-22 Budget 2021-22 Actual

530-0000-344257 SEWER TAPS                              200,000.00 260,000.00 61,000.00
530-0000-344212 WATER TAPS                              200,000.00 225,000.00 43,250.00
530-0000-610000 TRANSFER IN (RESERVES) 10,071,000.00 0.00 0.00

ENTERPRISE PROJECTS FUND 530 Revenue Totals 10,471,000.00 485,000.00 104,250.00

EXPENDITURES                                               ENTERPRISE PROJECTS FUND - 530
Account # Account Description 2022-23 Recmnd 2021-22 Budget 2021-22 Actual

530-4300-541400 CAPITAL OUTLAY - SEWER                  7,587,500.00 150,000.00 18,734.12
530-4400-541400 CAPITAL OUTLAY - WATER                  2,883,500.00 335,000.00 150,424.12

ENTERPRISE PROJECTS FUND 530 Expenditure Totals 10,471,000.00 485,000.00 169,158.24

ENTERPRISE PROJECTS FUND 530 Revenue Totals 10,471,000.00
ENTERPRISE PROJECTS FUND 530 Expenditure Totals 10,471,000.00

REVENUE                                                             GARBAGE FUND - 540
Account # Account Description 2022-23 Recmnd 2021-22 Budget 2021-22 Actual

540-0000-344110 REFUSE COLLECTION CHARGES               225,000.00 203,500.00 219,794.84
540-0000-611000 TRANSFER IN (RESERVES) 5,200.00 4,700.00 0.00

GARBAGE FUND 540 Revenue Totals 230,200.00 208,200.00 219,794.84

EXPENDITURES                                                             GARBAGE FUND - 540
Account # Account Description 2022-23 Recmnd 2021-22 Budget 2021-22 Actual

540-4310-511000 SALARIES                                0.00 0.00 0.00
540-4310-512100 GROUP INSURANCE                         0.00 0.00 0.00
540-4310-512200 TAXES: SUTA, FICA, FUTA                 0.00 0.00 0.00
540-4310-522110 GARBAGE SERVICES                        195,000.00 175,000.00 193,691.60
540-4310-523300 ADVERTISING                             200.00 200.00 0.00
540-4310-531100 SUPPLIES                                35,000.00 33,000.00 0.00
540-4310-574000 BAD DEBT 0.00 0.00 0.00
540-4310-541000 CAPITAL OUTLAY - BUILDING 0.00 0.00 0.00

GARBAGE FUND 540 Expenditure Totals 230,200.00 208,200.00 193,691.60

GARBAGE FUND 540 Revenue Totals 230,200.00
GARBAGE FUND 540 Expenditure Totals 230,200.00

Page 8
Exhibit "A"



REVENUE
Account # Account Description 2020-21 Recmnd 2021-22 Budget 2021-22 Actual

790-0000-321210 REAL ESTATE FEES                        125.00 200.00 175.00
790-0000-349100 CEMETERY LOT SALES                      9,000.00 16,450.00 11,250.00
790-0000-361000 INTEREST INCOME                         100.00 700.00 93.71
790-0000-611000 TRANSFER IN (RESERVES) 109,775.00 1,080.00 0.00

CEMETERY FUND 790 Revenue Totals 119,000.00 18,430.00 11,518.71

EXPENDITURES                                                                      CEMETERY FUND - 790
Account # Account Description 2022-23 Recmnd 2021-22 Budget 2021-22 Actual

790-4950-522200 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE                   12,000.00 11,860.00 4,300.00
790-4950-523600 DUES & FEES                             200.00 200.00 175.00
790-4950-531100 SUPPLIES                                6,800.00 6,800.00 9.99
790-4950-542500 CAPITAL OUTLAY - OTHER             100,000.00 0.00 0.00

CEMETERY FUND 790 Expenditure Totals 119,000.00 18,860.00 4,484.99

CEMETERY FUND 790 Revenue Totals 119,000.00
CEMETERY FUND 790 Expenditure Totals 119,000.00

                                                                     CEMETERY FUND - 790

Page 9
Exhibit "A"



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT REGARDING LOCAL OPTION SALES 

TAX 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/20/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO REQUEST APPROVAL OF THE IGA WITH DAWSON COUNTY REGARDING THE 
DISTRIBUTION OF LOCAL OPTION SALES TAXES 

    
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
AT THE TIME THIS PACKET WAS ASSEMBLED:  

 

• WAITING ON SIGNED COPY FROM THE COUNTY  
 

• UNAPPROVED DRAFT MINUTES FROM THE 06/02/2022 DAWSON COUNTY BOC 
MEETING READS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Motion passed 4-0 to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement Between the City of Dawsonville and Dawson 
County Concerning the Distribution of Local Option Sales Tax (LOST) and a Resolution Approving a LOST 
Agreement with the City of Dawsonville – with LOST proceeds being distributed as follows: 86.12 percent to 
Dawson County and 13.88 percent to the City of Dawsonville; and for the City of Dawsonville to pay Dawson 
County on or before December 31, 2022, $400,000 for the purposes of the county’s purchase of an ambulance 
and the equipping of same. Satterfield/Fausett 
 

     
   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Mike Eason, Mayor ______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   14     
 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 4 

STATE OF GEORGIA 
COUNTY OF DAWSON 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
DAWSONVILLE AND DAWSON COUNTY REGARDING 

THE DISTRIBUTION OF LOCAL OPTION SALES TAXES (LOST) 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT, effective as of ___________________, 2022, is by and between 
the CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, a Georgia municipal corporation (“City”), and DAWSON 
COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia (“County”) (collectively, the “Parties”). 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article IX, Section III, Paragraph I of the Constitution of the 
State of Georgia, the City and the County are authorized to contract with each other for a period 
not exceeding 50 years for the provision of services, or for the joint or separate use of facilities or 
equipment, so long as such contracts deal with activities, services, or facilities which both the City 
and the County are authorized by law to undertake or provide; and 

 WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. § 48-8-80, et seq., authorizes the levy of a local option sales tax 
(“LOST”) within a special tax district that includes the City and the County, and sets forth the 
process to determine the division of revenue generated by the LOST; and 

 WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. § 48-8-80, et seq., requires counties and cities to periodically 
renegotiate the distribution or revenues received from the LOST; and  

 WHEREAS, in accordance with O.C.G.A. § 48-8-80, et seq., the Parties have agreed that 
the LOST proceeds, less the one percent paid into the general fund of the state treasury pursuant 
to O.C.G.A. § 48-8-89 (a)(1), shall be distributed as follows: eighty-six and twelve one-hundredths 
of a percent (86.12%) to the County and thirteen and eighty-eight one-hundredths of a percent 
(13.88%) to the City; and 

 WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed further that on or before December 31, 2022, the City 
shall pay to the County $400,000.00 for the purposes of the County’s purchase of an ambulance 
and the equipping of same.  

 NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the factors set forth in O.C.G.A. 48-8-
89, and the mutual promises, the public purposes, and the acknowledgment and agreements 
contained herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties mutually agree to the above recitals and hereby enter 
into this intergovernmental agreement regarding the distribution of LOST revenues as follows: 

1. Recitals Incorporated.  All recitals set forth above are incorporated as express 
terms of this Agreement. 

 
2. LOST Distribution.  Effective January 1, 2023, through December 31, 2032, the 

LOST proceeds, less the one percent paid into the general fund of the state treasury pursuant to 



 

Page 2 of 4 

O.C.G.A. § 48-8-89 (a)(1), shall be distributed as follows: eighty-six and twelve one-hundredths 
of a percent (86.12%) to the County and thirteen and eighty-eight one-hundredths of a percent 
(13.88%) to the City. 

 
3. Purchase of Ambulance by the City.  On or before December 31, 2022, the City 

shall pay to the County $400,000.00 for the purposes of the County’s purchase of an ambulance 
and the equipping of same. 

 
4. Cooperation.  Each Party shall, at the request of the other, make, execute, and 

deliver or obtain all instruments and documents necessary to effectuate the provisions and intention 
of this Agreement, including the Georgia Department of Revenue LOST Certificate of 
Distribution, and shall do or cause to be done all such other things which either Party may 
reasonably require to effectuate the provisions and intention of this Agreement. 

 
5. Authority to Execute.  Each of the individuals executing this Agreement on behalf 

of his or her respective Party agrees and represents that he or she is authorized to do so and further 
agrees and represents that this Agreement has been duly passed upon by the required governmental 
agency or board in accordance with all applicable laws and spread upon the minutes thereof.   

 
6. Force Majeure. In case by reason of force majeure, any Party hereto shall be 

rendered unable, wholly or in part, to carry out its obligations under this Agreement, then if such 
Party shall give notice and full particulars of such force majeure in writing to the other Party within 
a reasonable time after occurrence of the event or cause relied on, the obligation of the Party giving 
such notice, so far as it is affected by such force majeure, shall be suspended during the 
continuance of the inability then claimed, but for no longer period.  Such Party shall endeavor to 
remove or overcome such inability with all reasonable dispatch. The term “force majeure,” as 
employed herein, shall mean any cause beyond the Party’s reasonable control which prevents 
performance under this Agreement. 

 
7. Waiver.  No failure by either Party to enforce any right or power granted under this 

Agreement, or to insist upon strict compliance, and no custom or practice of either Party at variance 
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall constitute a general waiver of any future 
breach or default or affect a Party’s right to demand exact and strict compliance with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.  Further, no express waiver shall affect any term or condition other 
than the one specified in such waiver, and that one only for the time and manner specifically stated. 

 
8. Severability; Termination.  Should any provision of this Agreement, or 

application thereof to any person or circumstance, be held invalid or unenforceable, the Parties 
shall immediately commence the renegotiation of this Agreement on the day following the entry 
of such order, and, if necessary, submit a new LOST Certificate of Distribution to the Georgia 



 

Page 3 of 4 

Department of Revenue consistent with the terms of such Agreement.  Following the 
commencement of such renegotiation, if the parties fail to reach an agreement within 60 days, the 
Parties shall submit the dispute to nonbinding arbitration, mediation, or such other means of 
resolving conflicts in a manner which attempts to reach a resolution of the dispute.  If the Parties 
are unable to reach a new Agreement during the nonbinding dispute resolution process, the Parties 
shall deposit twenty-five percent (25%) of their share of any LOST proceeds received thereafter 
into escrow with the mediator or arbitrator, to be held for the benefit of the Parties until such time 
as a new LOST Agreement is executed and a new LOST Certificate of Distribution consistent with 
the terms of such Agreement is filed with the Georgia Department of Revenue. 

 
9. Entire Agreement; Modification. This Agreement constitutes the entire 

agreement between the Parties and supersedes and replaces any and all other agreements, either 
oral or in writing, between the Parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.  No 
other agreement, statement or promise relating to the subject matter of this Agreement not 
contained in this Agreement shall be valid or binding.  This Agreement may be modified, amended, 
or terminated, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, only by a written agreement of 
both Parties signed by representatives of both Parties and with appropriate authorization.  

 
10. Agreement Jointly Drafted by the Parties.  Each Party represents that it has 

reviewed and become familiar with this Agreement and has notified the other Party of any 
discrepancies, conflicts or errors herein.  The Parties agree that, if any ambiguity or question of 
intent or interpretation arises, this Agreement is to be construed as if the Parties had drafted it 
jointly, as opposed to being construed against a Party because it was responsible for drafting one 
or more provisions of the Agreement.   

 
11. Notices. All notices, demands or requests required or permitted to be given 

pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been properly given or 
served and shall be effective on being deposited or placed in the United States mail, postage 
prepaid and registered or certified with return receipt requested to the addresses appearing below, 
or when delivered by hand to the addresses indicated below: 

If to the County: If to the City: 
 
Dawson County Board of Commissioners  
Attn: County Manager 
25 Justice Way, Suite 2313 
Dawsonville, Georgia 30534 

 
City of Dawsonville 
Attn: City Manager 
415 Highway 53 East, Suite 100  
Dawsonville, Georgia 30534 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto, acting by and through their duly authorized 
officials and officers pursuant to appropriate ordinances and resolutions hereinbefore duly and 
properly adopted by each, have caused this Agreement to be executed in duplicate counterparts 



 

Page 4 of 4 

and the official seals of each Party properly affixed, each delivering to the other one of said 
duplicate counterparts, the day and year first above written.  

 

       CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA 
 
 
 
       By: ______________________________ 
               Mike Eason, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
   
By: __________________________   [CITY SEAL] 
       Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       DAWSON COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
 
 
       By: ______________________________ 
                Billy Thurmond, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
By: _________________________   [COUNTY SEAL] 
       Kristen Cloud, County Clerk 
 



                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:  PROPOSED LIFT STATION REQUEST – STARLIGHT HOMES______________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:        JUNE 20, 2022                
 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

 Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget: _____ Capital Budget   ________Other  
 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____ Enterprise _____General Fund 

 

 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
Starlight Homes Is requesting to install a wastewater lift station within the development.  
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 

• Lift station would service parcels 092B 021 and 092B 024. 
• Lift station would serve 102 lots. 
• City staff has provided summary letter dated 6/6/22 with recommendation to deny.   

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS:  
Approve, Deny or Postpone  

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 

 
 

DEPARTMENT: Planning and Utilities________________________________________________ 
 

REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer and Jacob Barr____________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 15 
 

























































                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:  DAWSONVILLE MOONSHINE DISTILLERY LEASE – REQUEST FOR EARLY 

TERMINATION 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/20/2022   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO CONSIDER REQUEST FROM CHERYL WOOD, OWNER OF DAWSONVILLE MOONSHINE 
DISTILLERY, TO TERMINATE HER LEASE 

    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

    
   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   16     
 

 

 





















A 2A

Ar

R

G

l- 9



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   DOC BROWN FARM AND DISTILLERS – PRESENTATION TO REQUEST LEASE 

SPACE AT CITY HALL  
   

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/20/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

    PRESENTATION BY AMY BROWN FROM DOC BROWN FARM AND DISTILLERS  
 
 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
    
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 
 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager_____ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   17     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: CITY MANAGER    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/20/2022       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PROVIDE PROJECT UPDATES  

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED OUTLINE  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Bob Bolz, City Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     18     
 

 

 



CITY MANAGER REPORT 

JUNE 14 FOR JUNE 20, 2022, MEETING 

 
Friday Night Food Truck Night: Our June 3rd event was another great success. Five trucks were on hand, including, 
Egg Roll Boyz, PattyKakes, Black Market BBQ, Larry & Cris’ Corner Kitchen, and Best Ice Cream on Wheels.  At the 
last minute, two had to cancel, Chuy’s Tacos and Kandie’s Korn. July 1st is our next event. 

Farmer’s Market:  The Farmer’s Market continues to fill to capacity each week and produce isn’t even in season. We 
need to expand and construct a second shelter. Come on out and enjoy this community market every Saturday 
morning.  
 
A Family Fair: We are working with Family Connections to plan this event scheduled for July 29th from 6-11 PM. The 
event will feature agencies that will register as vendors. Vendors might include members of the Dawson County Family 
Connection Community Collaborative, non-profits, social services agencies, faith-based organizations, public servants, 
mental wellness providers, children’s service providers, and/or support groups who provide services for substance 
abuse, parenting, bereavement, etc. The overall goal is to provide these agencies an opportunity to connect with their 
community in a fun-filled afternoon of activity. Each agency will provide a family friendly activity at their station and their 
own agency media describing their resources. Food will be available, and the event will culminate with a family friendly 
movie.  

Fall Flu Clinic at the Farmer’s Market: The Dawson Co EMA/EMS and the local Department of Public Health have 
approached the city about hosting a flu clinic this fall at the Farmer’s Market. They seek to use this location as opposed 
to one of the county parks. We will let you know more as soon as we know more. 

 
Disc Golf: The big news this week is our new 9-hole disc golf course, Shiner’s 9.  While still under construction, the 
course has received heavy use already. The disc catchers are in, and the tee pads identified.  Much Thanks to volunteer 
Jim Guy, a local teacher, and Bev and Marc Banister for their hard work. Future work will include grinding the trail, pour 
and carpeting tee pads, installing signs and maps, adding a footbridge and one set of steps. 

Main Street Park Projects: 
 

• Disc Golf: See comments above. 
 

• Basketball Court: The basketball courts location has been laid out and cost estimates are underway.  
 

• Pickleball Courts:  We met with Signature Tennis Courts, a company from Woodstock that builds racquet 
sport courts. They are putting a design on paper for consideration. We have asked to company for a different 
layout better utilizing space. 

 
• Shade: Staff continue researching shade for various locations in the park. Costs are excessive and we are 

developing recommendations.  
 

• Skate Park Expansion: Staff met with some skate boarders to discuss what needs to be done next. They 
would like 10’ more of concrete slab and a half pipe.   

  
• Small Bathroom between Shelter #3 and Skate Park/Court Area: We are working to develop a simple 

design for a very small rest room to serve this area.  
 



• Stage: Staff are researching the purchase of a hydraulic, mobile stage, similar to what we used at the tree 
lighting event. Since it is portable it can be set up and taken down in a few hours. This idea is opposed to an 
amphitheater. Our concerns for an amphitheater include cost, additionally facility would sit outside, weather, 
and possibly get vandalized. As we develop more research, we will present pros, cons, and a recommendation 
soon.  

 
• Dog Park: Eagle Scout candidate Palmer Hartley has finished his project complete with obstacles for the 

dogs, signage, and an entry way. Soon we hope to have a grand opening of this great addition to our 
community. 

 
• Bridge & Trail to Library: A considerable amount of work was carried out this month to establish the trail 

and bridge to the library.  We will be recommending alternatives to the bridge. 
 

• Sidewalk to Main Street Park from Care Facility: We now have bids to connect the care facility to the park. 
The Dawson County Civitan Club will reimburse the city for the portion of the sidewalk on their property, and 
we will construct and pay for the sidewalk on city property. We are awaiting word from the contractor for when 
work will start. 

 
• Geocaching Site: Geocaching is a sport that is growing in popularity. There has existed a cache at the 

GRHOF for years. We have been approached by a volunteer geocaching enthusiast that wants to install and 
will maintain three sites, one in Main Street Park, one at the Dog Park, and one at Wallace Park. Staff have 
met with her, and we are awaiting her official proposal 

 
Customer Service Improvements within City Hall: This project is complete. 
 
Phone System Upgrade: Staff will receive training on the new system on June 23rd with plans for the system to go 
live on June 24th. 
 
Downtown Strategic Plan Grant from ARC: With the wise approval of the CC/M for increasing our grant match from 
70-30 to 50-50. We have submitted the necessary information to ARC in hopes of getting this $100 K grant approved 
and are awaiting their decision. 

 
Project – Administrative Building for Public Works and Utilities Director: The sheetrock is complete, doors hung, 
painting completed, cabinets installed, flooring scheduled, and water/sewer installation to the building underway. 
 
EV Charging Station: The station will be installed between June 23-27. 
 
Roundabout at Old Courthouse: No word from GDOT yet as to funding availability. 
 
Covid Protocol: No staff are out due to pandemic issues. The City Hall complex was fogged with disinfection this 
week. Numbers are showing some increases. City Hall was fogged this week. 
 
ARPA Funding: We received $3 million grant for the wastewater treatment plant. The $500,000.00 for the well was 
denied and we await word on grants for the airport and the museum. 
 



Water First Program: Chuck Butterfield, formerly of GTB now with CEC is drafting a proposal to prepare the city’s 
involvement in the Water First Program.  
 
Commission Meetings:  The Planning Commission had a brief meeting on June 13th approving three annexations 
and denying one variance. The Historic Preservation Commission is scheduled to meet June 27th.  
 
Comprehensive Plan: It is almost time to begin reviewing our city’s comprehensive plan last completed in 2018. This 
process should start in July. We are working with Adam Hazell of GMRC planning to begin this process and discussing 
update of our CIE as part of that plan. 
 
Old Cemetery to National Register of Historic Places: Pre-pandemic, the city was working on getting the cemetery 
listed on the National Register of Historic Places. The process got put on hold due to the pandemic. Staff are working 
with Joe Rothwell at GMRC to get this project re-started. 
 
Water Meter Upgrade: We are awaiting the finalization of the contract followed by the pre-construction meeting. 
 
Leak Adjustments: 2 Leak Adjustment this month. 

Water   Sewer   Total     $134.63 

Calendar YTD     $10,699.71  



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  06/20/2022       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PRESENT FUND BALANCE AND ACTIVITY THROUGH MAY 31, 2022 

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED FINANCIAL REPORTS  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   19   
 

 

 










	1. 06.20.2022 AGENDA City Council Regular Meeting and Work Session
	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2 06.06.2022 MINUTES City Council Regular Meeting.DRAFT
	8. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
	9. 1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ANX C2200161 Public Hearing 6-20-22
	9. 2 ANX-C2200161_GILLESPIE
	10. 1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ANX C2200162 Public Hearing 6-20-22
	10. 2 ANX-C2200162_DISHROON
	11. 1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ANX C2200170 Public Hearing 6-20-22
	11. 2 ANX-C2200170_TURNER
	12. 1 WAIVER REQUEST
	12. 2 Waiver of Reconnection Fee
	From: eric johnston <ericjohnston777@gmail.com>  Sent: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 10:27 AM To: Tracy Smith <water@dawsonville-ga.gov> Subject: Re: AGENDA

	12. 3 Reconnection Fee Ordinance
	RECONNECTION FEES.pdf
	FEES.pdf

	13. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items RESOLUTION BUDGET FY23
	13. 2 Resolution R2022-06- Adopt the FY 2022-2023 Budget
	13. 3 Budget2022-2023 Master.FINAL
	BUDGET FY 2022-23

	14. 1 Executive Summary LOST AGRMNT
	14. 2 2022 LOST Distribution Agreement (final 06-05-2022)
	15. 1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY Starlight Homes Lift Station Request
	15. 2 Starlight Homes Lift Station Request (1)
	15. 3 Starlight Homes Lift Station Request (2)
	16. 1 Executive Summary DISTILLERY LEASE TERMINATION
	16. 2 2022 Dawsonville Moonshine Distillery Lease
	17. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items FESTIVAL
	18. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items CITY MANAGER
	18. 2 06202022 CITY MANAGER REPORT
	19. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR
	19. 2 Financial Statements-MAY22



